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TI.W.95.01. WALIJAN 

Walijan was listed on 23 February 2001 as Governor of the Jawzjian Province of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Walijan was a member of a regional Taliban Shura and Head of the Taliban Prisoners and Refugees Committee.

Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.R.96.01. MOHAMMAD HASAN RAHMANI 

Mohammad Hasan Rahmani was listed on 23 February 2001 as Governor of the Kandahar Province of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Mohammad Hasan Rahmani was a member of the Taliban Supreme Council and a deputy of Mullah Mohammed Omar (TI.O.4.01) as of March 2010.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Mohammed Omar (TI.O.4.01), listed on 31 January 2001

TI.N.97.01. ABDUL MANAN NYAZI 

Abdul Manan Nyazi was listed on 25 January 2001 as Governor of the Kabul Province of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities. 

Additional information:
Abdul Manan Nyazi also served as a Taliban spokesperson and then as Provincial Governor of Mazar-e-Sharif and Kabul provinces under the Taliban regime. 

Abdul Manan Nyazi has been a senior Taliban commander in the west of Afghanistan, operating in the Farah, Herat and Nimroz provinces, since mid-2009.

Abdul Manan Nyazi was a member of a regional Taliban council and appointed as the Taliban governor of Herat Province as at May 2010.

Abdul Manan Nyazi is a Taliban commander involved in transporting suicide bombers to Afghanistan. 

Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.S.98.01. ABDUL WAHED SHAFIQ 

Abdul Wahed Shafiq was listed on 23 February 2001 as Deputy Governor of the Kabul Province of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.M.99.01. MOHAMMAD SHAFIQ MOHAMMADI 

Mohammad Shafiq Mohammadi was listed on 25 January 2001 as Governor of the Khost Province of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Mohammad Shafiq Mohammadi was also Governor General of Paktia, Paktika, Khost and Ghazni Provinces during the Taliban regime. 

Related listed individuals and entities
TI.M.100.01. NAZIR MOHAMMAD ABDUL BASIR 

Nazir Mohammad Abdul Basir was listed on 23 February 2001 as Governor of the Kunduz Province of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Related listed individuals and entities: 

TI.A.101.01. MOHAMMAD ESHAQ AKHUNZADA 

Mohammad Eshaq Akhunzada was listed on 23 February 2001 as the Governor of Laghman Province of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
In 2008, Mohammad Eshaq Akhunzada was the Taliban provincial commander for Ghazni Province, Afghanistan, and he remained  active in the province as at 2011.

TI.M.102.01. ZIA-UR-RAHMAN MADANI 

Zia-ur-Rahman Madani was listed on 23 February 2001 as Governor of the Logar Province of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Zia-ur-Rahman Madani was in charge of the Taliban's military affairs in the Takhar Province as of May 2007. He has facilitated fund raising in the Gulf on behalf of the Taliban since 2003. He also facilitated meetings between Taliban officials and wealthy supporters and arranged for more than a dozen individuals to travel to Kabul, Afghanistan, for suicide attacks. He is believed to be involved in drug trafficking.

Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.S.103.01. SHAMSUDDIN 

Shamsuddin was listed on 23 February 2001 as Governor of the Wardak (Maidan) Province of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.M.104.01. MOHAMMAD RASUL AYYUB 

Mohammad Rasul Ayyub was listed on 23 February 2001 as Governor of the Nimroz Province of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Mohammad Rasul Ayyub has been a member of a regional Taliban Council. 

Related listed individuals and entities:
Mohammed Omar (TI.O.4.01), listed on 31 January 2001

TI.T.105.01. AHMAD TAHA KHALID ABDUL QADIR 

Ahmad Taha Khalid Abdul Qadir was listed on 23 February 2001 as Governor of the Paktia Province of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Ahmad Taha Khalid Abdul Qadir also served under the Taliban regime as Governor of the Kunar Province at the end of 2001. He was responsible for Wardak Province for the Taliban as at September 2009. He was the Taliban member responsible for Nangarhar Province as at 2011. 

Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.A.106.01. MOHAMMAD SHAFIQ AHMADI 

Mohammad Shafiq Ahmadi was listed on 23 February 2001 as Governor of the Samangan Province of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.A.107.01. AMINULLAH AMIN QUDDUS 

Aminullah Amin Quddus was listed on 23 February 2001 as Governor of the Saripul Province of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Aminullah Amin Quddus was a member of the Taliban Supreme Council as at 2011.

TI.S.108.01. ABDULHAI SALEK 

Abdulhai Salek was listed on 23 February 2001 as Governor of the Uruzgan Province of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
The information that Abdulhai Salek was “reportedly deceased” was added to the Consolidated List in March 2009.

Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.A.109.01. AHMAD JAN AKHUNDZADA SHUKOOR AKHUNDZADA 

Ahmad Jan Akhundzada Shukoor Akhundzada was listed on 25 January 2001 as Governor of the Zabol and Uruzgan Provinces of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Ahmad Jan Akhunzada Shukoor Akhunzada was the Taliban member in charge of Uruzgan Province as at early 2007. He is a brother-in-law of Mullah Mohammed Omar (TI.O.4.01). 

Related listed individuals and entities:
Mohammed Omar (TI.O.4.01), listed on 31 January 2001

TI.S.110.01. NOOR MOHAMMAD SAQIB 

Noor Mohammad Saqib was listed on 25 January 2001 as Chief Justice of the Supreme Court of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Noor Mohammad Saqib is a member of the Taliban Supreme Council and head of its Religious Committee, which acts as a judiciary branch of the Taliban.

Related listed individuals and entities:
S.111.01. HAMDULLAH SUNANI 

Hamdullah Sunani was listed on 23 February 2001 as Head of Dar-ul-Efta of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Hamdullah Sunani’s post as the Head of Dar-ul-Efta (Fatwa Department) came under the Supreme Court of the Taliban regime. 

Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.D.113.01. SHAHABUDDIN DELAWAR 

Shahabuddin Delawar was listed on 23 February 2001 as a Deputy of the High Court of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Shahabuddin Delawar was also Deputy Head of the Taliban Embassy in Riyadh, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia until 25 September 1998.

Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.A.114.01. ABDUL RAHMAN AGHA 

Abdul Rahman Agha was listed on 25 January 2001 as Chief Justice of the Military Court of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
TI.H.118.01. HAMIDULLAH AKHUND SHER MOHAMMAD 

Hamidullah Akhund Sher Mohammad was listed on 25 January 2001 as Head of Ariana Afghan Airlines under the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Related listed individuals and entities:
Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.M.119.01. JAN MOHAMMAD MADANI 

Jan Mohammad Madani was listed on 25 January 2001 as Charge d'Affaires of the Taliban Embassy in Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates, of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.A.121.01. AZIZIRAHMAN ABDUL AHAD 

Azizirahman Abdul Ahad was listed on 25 January 2001 as a Third Secretary at the Taliban Embassy in Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates, of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.A.122.01. ABDUL MANAN 

Abdul Manan was listed on 25 January 2001 as Commercial Attaché at the Taliban Embassy in Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates, of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Abdul Manan became a senior Taliban commander in Paktia, Paktika and Khost Provinces of eastern Afghanistan. He was also responsible for the movement of Taliban fighters and weapons across the Afghanistan-Pakistan border. 

Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.A.123.01. ABDUL WAHAB 

Abdul Wahab was listed on 25 January 2001 as Chargé d'Affaires at the Taliban Embassy in Riyadh, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Abdul Wahab was also a First Secretary at the Taliban Embassy in Islamabad, Pakistan. He was a member of a regional Taliban Council as at 2010.

Related listed individuals and entities:

TI.Z.127.01. MOHAMMAD ZAHID 

Mohammad Zahid was listed on 25 January 2001 as a Third Secretary at the Taliban Embassy in Islamabad, Pakistan, of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Related listed individuals and entities
TI.S.126.01. MOHAMMAD SARWAR SIDDIQMAL MOHAMMAD MASOOD 

Mohammad Sarwar Siddiqmal Mohammad Masood was listed on 25 January 2001 as a Third Secretary at the Taliban Embassy in Islamabad, Pakistan, of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.A.128.01. ABDUL QADEER ABDUL BASEER 

Abdul Qadeer Abdul Baseer was listed on 25 January 2001 as Military Attaché at the Taliban Embassy in Islamabad, Pakistan, of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Abdul Qadeer Abdul Baseer served as a treasurer for the Taliban in Peshawar, Pakistan, as at 2009. He was the financial advisor to the Taliban’s Peshawar Military Council and the head of the Taliban’s Peshawar Financial Commission as at early 2010. He personally delivers money from the Taliban’s leadership shura to Taliban groups throughout Pakistan.

Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.A.129.01. NAZIRULLAH HANAFI WALIULLAH 

Nazirullah Hanafi Waliullah was listed on 25 January 2001 as Commercial Attaché at the Taliban Embassy in Islamabad, Pakistan, of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.Q.130.01. ABDUL GHAFAR QURISHI ABDUL GHANI 

Abdul Ghafar Qurishi Abdul Ghani was listed on 25 January 2001 as Repatriation Attaché at the Taliban Embassy in Islamabad, Pakistan, of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Abdul Ghafar Qurishi Abdul Ghani has been involved in drug trafficking.

Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.M.132.01. NAJIBULLAH MUHAMMAD JUMA 

Najibullah Muhammad Juma was listed on 25 January 2001 as Consul General at the Taliban Consulate General in Peshawar, Pakistan, of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Najibullah Muhammad Juma was a member of a regional Taliban Military Council as at 2010.

Related listed individuals and entities:

TI.S.133.01. ABDUL WALI SEDDIQI 

Abdul Wali Seddiqi was listed on 25 January 2001 as a First Secretary at the Taliban Consulate General in Peshawar, Pakistan, under the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
The List entry was amended on 25 July 2006 to change his designation to Third Secretary.

Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.M.135.01. ABDUL QUDDUS MAZHARI 

Abdul Quddus Mazhari was listed on 25 January 2001 as Education Attaché at the Taliban Consulate General in Peshawar, Pakistan, of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Related listed individuals and entities:

TI.A.136.01. MOHAMMAD SADIQ AMIR MOHAMMAD 

Mohammad Sadiq Amir Mohammad was listed on 25 January 2001 as Trade Representative at the Taliban Consulate General in Peshawar, Pakistan, of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
The List entry was amended on 25 July 2006 to change his designation to Head of Afghan Trade Agency in Peshawar, Pakistan, of the Taliban regime.

Mohammad Sadiq Amir Mohammad was a member of the new majlis shura reportedly announced by Mohammed Omar (TI.O.4.01) in October 2006.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Mohammed Omar (TI.O.4.01), listed on 25 January 2001

TI.K.137.01. RAHMATULLAH KAKAZADA 

Rahmatullah Kakazada was listed on 25 January 2001 as Consul General at the Taliban Consulate General in Karachi, Pakistan, of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Rahmatullah Kakazada was also the Taliban "Governor" of the Province of Ghazni, Afghanistan, as of May 2007.

Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.N.138.01. MOHAMMAD ALEEM NOORANI 

Mohammad Aleem Noorani was listed on 25 January 2001 as a First Secretary at the Taliban Consulate General in Karachi, Pakistan, of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Related listed individuals and entities
TI.S.139.01. ABDUL GHAFAR SHINWARI 

Abdul Ghafar Shinwari was listed on 25 January 2001 as a Third Secretary at the Taliban Consulate General in Karachi, Pakistan, of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.H.140.01. GUL AHMAD HAKIMI 

Gul Ahmad Hakimi was listed on 25 January 2001 as Commercial Attaché at the Taliban Consulate General in Karachi, Pakistan, of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Gul Ahmad Hakimi was also the Director-General of the Secondary Education Department of the Ministry of Education in Kabul of the Taliban regime before being posted to Karachi in 1996.

Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.H.141.01. ABDULLAH HAMAD 

Abdullah Hamad was listed on 25 January 2001 as Consul General at the Taliban Consulate General in Quetta, Pakistan, of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.H.142.01. ABDUL HAI HAZEM ABDUL QADER 

Abdul Hai Hazem Abdul Qader was listed on 25 January 2001 as a First Secretary at the Taliban Consulate General in Quetta, Pakistan, of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.H.143.01. HAMDULLAH ALLAH NOOR 

Hamdullah Allah Noor was listed on 25 January 2001 as Repatriation Attaché at the Taliban Consulate General in Quetta, Pakistan, of the Taliban regime so falling within the provisions of resolutions 1267 (1999) and 1333 (2000) of the United Nations Security Council regarding acts and activities of the Taliban authorities.

Additional information:
Related listed individuals and entities
TI.H.144.07. SIRAJUDDIN JALLALOUDINE HAQQANI 

Sirajuddin Jallaloudine Haqqani was listed on 13 September 2007 pursuant to paragraphs 1 and 12 of resolution 1735 (2006) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing, or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf or in support of”, “recruiting for” or “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” the Taliban, Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01 on the Al-Qaida Sanctions List) and Jaish-i-Mohammed (QE.J.19.01 on the Al-Qaida Sanctions List),

Additional information:
Sirajuddin Jallaloudine Haqqani is one of the most prominent, influential, charismatic and experienced leaders within the Haqqani network, a group of fighters with a close association with both the Taliban and Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01 on the Al-Qaida Sanctions List), and has been one of the major operational commanders of the network since 2004. 

Sirajuddin Haqqani derives much of his power and authority from his father, Jalaluddin Haqqani (TI.H.40.01), a former Minister of the Taliban regime, who was a Taliban military commander and a go-between for Al-Qaida and the Taliban on both sides of the Afghanistan/Pakistan border. During his tenure as a Minister of the Taliban regime, Jalaluddin Haqqani established very close links with Al-Qaida.

Sirajuddin Haqqani is strongly associated with the Taliban, who provides him funding for his operations. He also receives funding from various other groups and individuals, including drug lords. He is a key conduit for terrorist operations in Afghanistan and supporting activities in the Federally Administered Tribal Areas of Pakistan. His connections to the Taliban were made public in May 2006 by Mullah Dadullah, then one of the top Taliban military commanders, who stated that he worked with Sirajuddin Haqqani and planned operations with him. He also has connections with Jaish-i-Mohammed (QE.J.19.01 on the Al-Qaida Sanctions List).

Sirajuddin Haqqani is actively involved in the planning and execution of attacks targeting International Security Assistance Forces (ISAF), Afghan officials and civilians, mainly in the eastern and southern regions of Afghanistan. He also regularly recruits and sends fighters into the Khost, Paktia and Paktika Provinces in Afghanistan. 

Sirajuddin Haqqani was involved in the suicide bombing attack against a Police Academy bus in Kabul on 18 June 2007 which killed 35 police officers. 

His brothers Nasiruddin Haqqani (TI.H.146.10)and Badruddin Haqqani (TI.H.151.11), and his uncles Mohammad Ibrahim Omari (TI.O.42.01) and Khalil Ahmed Haqqani (TI.H.150.11) are also listed.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Jalaluddin Haqqani (TI.H.40.01), listed on 31 January 2001
Mohammad Ibrahim Omari (TI.O.42.01), listed on 23 February 2001

Nasiruddin Haqqani (TI.H.146.10), listed on 20 July 2010

Khalil Ahmed Haqqani (TI.H.150.11), listed on 9 February 2011
Badruddin Haqqani (TI.H.151.11), listed on 11 May 2011
Sangeen Zadran (TI.Z.152.11), listed on 16 August 2011
Abdul Aziz Abbasin (TI.A.155.11.), listed on 4 October 2011

Fazl Rabi (TI.R.157.12), listed on 6 January 2012
Ahmed Jan Wazir (TI.W.159.12), listed on 6 January 2012 

Related individuals and entities on the Al-Qaida Sanctions List:
Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01), listed on 6 October 2001
Jaish-i-Mohammed (QE.J.19.01), listed on 17 October 2001

TI.A.145.10. AMIR ABDULLAH
Amir Abdullah was listed on 20 July 2010 pursuant to paragraph 2 of resolution 1904 (2009) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing, or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of”, “recruiting for” or “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” the Taliban. 

Additional information:
Amir Abdullah has served as treasurer to senior Taliban leader Abdul Ghani Baradar (TI.B.24.01) and was the former deputy to the Taliban governor of Kandahar Province, Afghanistan. Amir Abdullah has traveled to Kuwait, Saudi Arabia, Libya and the United Arab Emirates to raise funds for the Taliban. He has also facilitated communications for Taliban leadership and coordinated high-level meetings at the guesthouse of his residence in Pakistan. Abdullah helped many senior Taliban members who fled Afghanistan in 2001 to settle in Pakistan. 

Related listed individuals and entities:
Abdul Ghani Baradar (TI.B.24.01), listed on 23 February 2001 

TI.H.146.10. NASIRUDDIN HAQQANI
Nasiruddin Haqqani was listed on 20 July 2010 pursuant to paragraph 2 of resolution 1904 (2009) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing, or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of”, “recruiting for” or “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” the Taliban and Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01 on the Al-Qaida Sanctions List). 

Additional information:
The Haqqani Network is a Taliban-affiliated group of militants that operates from North Waziristan Agency in the Federally Administered Tribal Areas of Pakistan. It has been at the forefront of insurgent activity in Afghanistan, responsible for many high-profile attacks. The Haqqani network leadership consists of the three oldest sons of Jalaluddin Haqqani (TI.H.40.01), one of whom is Nasiruddin Haqqani. 

Nasiruddin Haqqani functions as an emissary for the Haqqani Network and spends much of his time raising money. In 2004, Haqqani traveled to Saudi Arabia with a Taliban associate to raise funds for the Taliban. He also provided funds in 2004 to militants in Afghanistan for the purpose of disrupting the Afghan presidential election. From at least 2005 to 2008, Nasiruddin Haqqani collected funds for the Haqqani Network through various fundraising trips, including during regular travel to the United Arab Emirates in 2007 and through a fundraising trip to another Gulf state in 2008. As of mid-2007, Haqqani reportedly had three main sources of funding: donations from the Gulf region, drug trafficking, and payments from Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01 on the Al-Qaida Sanctions List). In late 2009, Nasiruddin Haqqani received several hundred thousand dollars from Al-Qaida-associated individuals in the Arabian Peninsula to use for Haqqani Network activities. 

His brothers Sirajuddin Jallaloudine Haqqani (TI.H.144.07) and Badruddin Haqqani (TI.H.151.11), and his uncles Mohammad Ibrahim Omari (TI.O.42.01) and Khalil Ahmed Haqqani (TI.H.150.11) are also listed.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Jalaluddin Haqqani (TI.H.40.01), listed on 31 January 2001 
Mohammad Ibrahim Omari (TI.O.42.01), listed on 23 February 2001

Sirajuddin Jallaloudine Haqqani (TI.H.144.07), listed on 13 September 2007

Khalil Ahmed Haqqani (TI.H.150.11), listed on 9 February 2011
Badruddin Haqqani (TI.H.151.11), listed on 11 May 2011
Abdul Aziz Abbasin (TI.A.155.11.), listed on 4 October 2011 

Fazl Rabi (TI.R.157.12), listed on 6 January 2012
Ahmed Jan Wazir (TI.W.159.12), listed on 6 January 2012

Related individuals and entities on the Al-Qaida Sanctions List:
 TI.I.147.10. GUL AGHA ISHAKZAI
Gul Agha Ishakzai was listed on 20 July 2010 pursuant to paragraph 2 of resolution 1904 (2009) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing, or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of”, “recruiting for” or “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” the Taliban. 

Additional information:
Gul Agha Ishakzai is the head of the Taliban's financial commission and is part of a recently created Taliban council that coordinates the collection of zakat (Islamic tax) from Baluchistan Province, Pakistan. He has also collected money for suicide attacks in Kandahar, Afghanistan, and has been involved in the disbursement of funds to Taliban fighters and their families. 

A childhood friend of Taliban leader Mullah Mohammad Omar (TI.O.4.01), Gul Agha Ishakzai has served as Omar's principal finance officer and one of his closest advisors. At one time, no one was allowed to meet Mullah Omar unless approved by him. He lived in the presidential palace with Omar during the Taliban regime.

In December 2005, Gul Agha Ishakzai facilitated the movement of people and goods to Taliban training camps; in late 2006 he traveled abroad to obtain weapon parts. 

Related listed individuals and entities:
Mohammed Omar (TI.O.4.01), listed on 31 January 2001 

Mohammad Aman Akhund (TI.A.158.12), listed on 6 January 2012

l-Qaida (QE.A.4.01), listed on 6 October 2001

TI.A.148.10. AGHA JAN ALIZAI
Agha Jan Alizai was listed on 4 November 2010 pursuant to paragraph 2 of resolution 1904 (2009) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing, or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of”, “supplying, selling and transferring arms and materiel to” or “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” the Taliban. 

Additional information:
Agha Jan Alizai has managed one of the largest drug trafficking networks in Helmand, Afghanistan, and has provided funds to the Taliban in exchange for protection of his narco-trafficking activities. In 2008, a group of narcotics traffickers, including Alizai, agreed to pay the Taliban tax on land where opium poppy was planted in return for Taliban agreement to organize transportation for narcotics materials. The Taliban also agreed to provide security for the narco-traffickers and their storage sites, while the traffickers would provide shelter and transportation to Taliban fighters. Alizai has also been involved in the purchase of weapons for the Taliban and has traveled to Pakistan regularly to meet senior Taliban leaders. Alizai has also facilitated the procurement of fraudulent Iranian passports by Taliban members in order to travel to Iran for training. In 2009, Alizai provided a passport and funds to a Taliban commander to travel to Iran. 

Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.K.149.10. SALEH MOHAMMAD KAKAR AKHTAR MUHAMMAD
Saleh Mohammad Kakar Akhtar Muhammad was listed on 4 November 2010 pursuant to paragraph 2 of resolution 1904 (2009) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing, or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of” or “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” the Taliban. 

Additional information:
Saleh Mohammad Kakar Akhtar Muhammad is a narcotics trafficker who has run an organized smuggling network in Kandahar and Helmand Provinces, Afghanistan, which met Taliban logistical and financial needs. Prior to his arrest by Afghan authorities, Saleh Mohammad Kakar Akhtar Muhammad operated heroin processing laboratories in the Band-e-Timor area of Kandahar Province that were protected by the Taliban. Saleh Mohammad Kakar Akhtar Muhammad has been in contact with senior Taliban leaders, collected cash on their behalf from narco-traffickers, and managed and hid money belonging to senior Taliban members. He was also responsible for facilitating tax payments to the Taliban on behalf of narco-traffickers. Saleh Mohammad Kakar Akhtar Muhammad has owned a car dealership in Kandahar and has provided the Taliban with vehicles for use in suicide attacks.

Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.H.150.11. KHALIL AHMED HAQQANI 

Khalil Ahmed Haqqani was listed on 9 February 2011 pursuant to paragraph 2 of resolution 1904 (2009) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing, or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of” or “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” the Taliban.

Additional information:
Khalil Ahmed Haqqani is a senior member of the Haqqani Network, a Taliban-affiliated group of militants that operates from North Waziristan Agency in the Federally Administered Tribal Areas of Pakistan.  At the forefront of insurgent activity in Afghanistan, the Haqqani Network was founded by Khalil Haqqani’s brother, Jalaluddin Haqqani (TI.H.40.01), who joined Mullah Mohammed Omar's (TI.0.4.01) Taliban regime in the mid-1990s.  

Khalil Haqqani engages in fundraising activities on behalf of the Taliban and the Haqqani Network, often travelling internationally to meet with financial supporters.  As of September 2009, Khalil Haqqani had traveled to Gulf states and had raised funds from sources there, as well as from sources in South and East Asia.  

Khalil Haqqani also provides support to the Taliban and the Haqqani Network operating in Afghanistan.  As of early 2010, Khalil Haqqani provided funds to Taliban cells in Logar Province, Afghanistan.  In 2009, Khalil Haqqani supplied and controlled approximately 160 combatants in Logar Province, Afghanistan, and was one of several people responsible for the detention of enemy prisoners captured by the Taliban and the the Haqqani Network.  Khalil Haqqani has taken orders for Taliban operations from Sirajuddin Haqqani (TI.H.144.07), his nephew.  

Khalil Haqqani has also acted on behalf of Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01) and has been linked to its military operations.  In 2002, Khalil Haqqani deployed men to reinforce Al-Qaida elements in Paktia Province, Afghanistan.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01), listed on 6 October 2001

Mohammed Omar (TI.O.4.01), listed on 31 January 2001
Jalaluddin Haqqani (TI.H.40.01), listed on 31 January 2001
Sirajuddin Jallaloudine Haqqani (TI.H.144.07), listed on 13 September 2007 

TI.H.151.11. BADRUDDIN HAQQANI
Badruddin Haqqani was listed on 11 May 2011 pursuant to paragraph 2 of resolution 1904 (2009) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing, or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of”, and “other acts and activity indicating association with” the Taliban.

Additional information:
Badruddin Haqqani is the operational commander for the Haqqani Network, a Taliban-affiliated group of militants that operates from North Waziristan Agency in the Federally Administered Tribal Areas of Pakistan. The Haqqani Network has been at the forefront of insurgent activity in Afghanistan, responsible for many high-profile attacks. The Haqqani Network’s leadership consists of the three eldest sons of its founder Jalaluddin Haqqani (TI.H.40.01), who joined Mullah Mohammed Omar's (TI.O.4.01) Taliban regime in the mid-1990s. Badruddin is the son of Jalaluddin and brother to Nasiruddin Haqqani (TI.H.146.10) and Sirajuddin Haqqani (TI.H.144.07), as well as nephew of Khalil Ahmed Haqqani (TI.H.150.11).

Badruddin helps lead Taliban associated insurgents and foreign fighters in attacks against targets in south-eastern Afghanistan. Badruddin sits on the Miram Shah shura of the Taliban, which has authority over Haqqani Network activities.

Badruddin is assumed to be one of the most important military leaders and planners of suicide attacks within the Haqqani Network which commands about 1000 fighters. The Haqqani Network is responsible for a large number of the attacks that have occurred in eastern Afghanistan and in Kabul. Badruddin is deemed to be directly involved in attacks against foreign and Afghan forces as well as against civilians; he cooperates closely with other terrorist organizations such as Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01) and the Islamic Movement of Uzbekistan (QE.I.10.01).

Badruddin is also believed to be in charge of kidnappings for the Haqqani Network. He has been responsible for the kidnapping of numerous Afghans and foreign nationals in the Afghanistan-Pakistan border region.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01), listed on 6 October 2001
Islamic Movement of Uzbekistan (QE.I.10.01), listed on 6 October 2001 

Jalaluddin Haqqani (TI.H.40.01), listed on 31 January 2001
Sirajuddin Jallaloudine Haqqani (TI.H.144.07), listed on 13 September 2007
Nasiruddin Haqqani (TI.H.146.10), listed on 20 July 2010
Khalil Ahmed Haqqani (TI.H.150.11), listed on 9 February 2011

TI.Z.152.11. SANGEEN ZADRAN 

Sangeen Zadran was listed on 16 August 2011 pursuant to paragraph 3 of resolution 1988 (2011) for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing, or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of those designated and other individuals, groups, undertakings and entities associated with the Taliban in constituting a threat to the peace, stability and security of Afghanistan”.

Additional information:
Sangeen Zadran is an insurgency leader in Paktika Province, Afghanistan, and a commander of the Haqqani Network. The Haqqani Network, a Taliban-affiliated group of militants that operates in the border region between Afghanistan and Pakistan, has been at the forefront of insurgent activity in Afghanistan, responsible for many high-profile attacks. Zadran acts as a senior lieutenant to Haqqani Network leader Sirajuddin Haqqani (TI.H.144.07)

Sangeen Zadran helps lead fighters in attacks across southeastern Afghanistan, and is believed to have planned and coordinated the movement of foreign fighters into Afghanistan. Sangeen Zadran has also been involved in numerous attacks by improvised explosive devices (IEDs).

In addition to his role in these attacks, Sangeen Zadran has also been involved in the kidnapping of Afghans and foreign nationals in the border region between Afghanistan and Pakistan.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Sirajuddin Jallaloudine Haqqani (TI.H.144.07), listed on 13 September 2007

TI.M.153.11. FAIZULLAH NOORZAI AKHTAR MOHAMMED MIRA KHAN 

Faizullah Noorzai Akhtar Mohammed Mira Khan was listed on 4 October 2011 pursuant to paragraph 3 of resolution 1988 (2011) for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing, or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of those designated and other individuals, groups, undertakings and entities associated with the Taliban in constituting a threat to the peace, stability and security of Afghanistan”.

Additional information:
Faizullah Noorzai Akhtar Mohammed Mira Khan has served as a prominent Taliban financier with whom senior Taliban leaders invested funds. He has collected over $100,000 for the Taliban from donors in the Gulf and in 2009 gave a portion of his own money. He also financially supported a Taliban commander in Kandahar Province and has provided funding to assist with training Taliban and Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01) fighters who were to conduct attacks against Coalition and Afghan military forces. As of mid-2005, Faizullah organized and funded Taliban operations in Kandahar Province, Afghanistan.

In addition to his financial support, Faizullah has otherwise facilitated Taliban training and operations. As of mid-2009, Faizullah supplied weapons, ammunition, explosives, and medical equipment to Taliban fighters from southern Afghanistan. In mid-2008, Faizullah was responsible for housing Taliban suicide bombers and moving them from Pakistan into Afghanistan. Faizullah has also provided anti-aircraft missiles to the Taliban, helped move Taliban fighters around Helmand Province, Afghanistan, facilitated Taliban suicide bombing operations, and given radios and vehicles to Taliban members in Pakistan.

As of mid-2009, Faizullah operated a madrassa (religious school) in the Afghanistan/Pakistan border region, where tens of thousands of dollars were raised for the Taliban. Faizullah's madrassa grounds were used to provide training to Taliban fighters in the construction and use of improvised explosive devices (IEDs). As of late 2007, Faizullah's madrassa was used to train Al-Qaida fighters who were later sent to Kandahar Province, Afghanistan.

In 2010, Faizullah maintained offices and possibly owned properties, including hotels, in Dubai, the United Arab Emirates. Faizullah regularly travelled to Dubai and Japan with his brother, Malik Noorzai (TI.N.154.11.), to import cars, auto parts, and clothing. As of early 2006, Faizullah owned businesses in Dubai and Japan.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01), listed on 6 October 2001

Malik Noorzai (TI.N.154.11), listed on 4 October 2011 

TI.N.154.11. MALIK NOORZAI 

Malik Noorzai was listed on 4 October 2011 pursuant to paragraph 3 of resolution 1988 (2011) for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing, or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of those designated and other individuals, groups, undertakings and entities associated with the Taliban in constituting a threat to the peace, stability and security of Afghanistan”.

Additional information:
Malik Noorzai is a Pakistan-based businessman who has provided financial support to the Taliban. Malik and his brother, Faizullah Noorzai Akhtar Mohammed Mira Khan (TI.M.153.11.), have invested millions of dollars in various businesses for the Taliban. In late 2008, Taliban representatives approached Malik as a businessman with whom to invest Taliban funds. Since at least 2005, Malik has also personally contributed tens of thousands of dollars and distributed hundreds of thousands of dollars to the Taliban, some of which was collected from donors in the Gulf region and Pakistan and some of which was Malik's own money. Malik also handled a hawala account in Pakistan that received tens of thousands of dollars transferred from the Gulf every few months to support Taliban activities.

Malik has also facilitated Taliban activities. As of 2009, Malik had served for 16 years as the chief caretaker of a madrassa (religious school) in the Afghanistan/Pakistan border region, that was used by the Taliban to indoctrinate and train recruits. Among other things, Malik delivered the funds that supported the madrassa. Malik, along with his brother, has also played a role in storing vehicles to be used in Taliban suicide bombing operations and has helped move Taliban fighters around Helmand Province, Afghanistan.

Malik owns businesses in Japan and frequently visits Dubai and Japan for business. As early as 2005, Malik owned a vehicle import business in Afghanistan that imported vehicles from Dubai and Japan. He has imported cars, auto parts, and clothing from Dubai and Japan for his businesses, in which two Taliban commanders have invested. In mid-2010, Malik and his brother secured the release of hundreds of cargo containers, reportedly worth millions of dollars, which Pakistani authorities seized earlier that year because they believed the recipients had a connection to terrorism.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Faizullah Noorzai Akhtar Mohammed Mira Khan (TI.M.153.11.), listed on 4 October 2011 

TI.A.155.11. ABDUL AZIZ ABBASIN 

Abdul Aziz Abbasin was listed on 4 October 2011 pursuant to paragraph 3 of resolution 1988 (2011) for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing, or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of those designated and other individuals, groups, undertakings and entities associated with the Taliban in constituting a threat to the peace, stability and security of Afghanistan”.

Additional information:
Abdul Aziz Abbasin is a key commander in the Haqqani Network, a Taliban-affiliated group of militants that operates from Eastern Afghanistan and North Waziristan Agency in the Federally Administered Tribal Areas of Pakistan. As of early 2010, Abbasin received orders from Sirajuddin Haqqani (TI.H.144.07) and was appointed by him to serve as the Taliban shadow governor of Orgun District, Paktika Province, Afghanistan. Abbasin commands a group of Taliban fighters and has assisted in running a training camp for foreign fighters based in Paktika Province. Abbasin has also been involved in ambushing vehicles supplying Afghan government forces and the transport of weapons to Afghanistan.  

Related listed individuals and entities:
Sirajuddin Jallaloudine Haqqani (TI.H.144.07), listed on 13 September 2007

TI.A.156.12. AHMAD ZIA AGHA 

Ahmad Zia Agha was listed on 6 January 2012 pursuant to paragraph 3 of resolution 1988 (2011) as being associated with the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of” and “otherwise supporting acts or activities of those designated and other individuals, groups, undertakings and entities associated with the Taliban” in constituting a threat to the peace, stability and security of Afghanistan.

Additional information:
Ahmad Zia Agha is a senior Taliban leader with military and financial responsibilities. In 2010, Ahmad Zia Agha was the leader of the Taliban's military shura (council), which directed Taliban military operations in western Afghanistan. In 2009, Ahmad Zia Agha served as a Taliban finance officer and distributed money to Taliban commanders. As part of his financial responsibilities, Ahmad Zia Agha transferred tens of thousands of dollars to Taliban shadow provincial governors; the Taliban's shura treasurer also entrusted Ahmad Zia Agha with hundreds of thousands of dollars to fund improvised explosive device (IED) operations. In 2008, Ahmad Zia Agha was involved in distributing funds to Taliban commanders in Afghanistan and transferred money to individuals associated with the Taliban outside the country. He has also facilitated communications for a Taliban military leader.

Related listed individuals and entities:
TI.R.157.12. FAZL RABI 

Fazl Rabi was listed on 6 January 2012 pursuant to paragraph 3 of resolution 1988 (2011) as being associated with the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of” and “otherwise supporting acts or activities of those designated and other individuals, groups, undertakings and entities associated with the Taliban” in constituting a threat to the peace, stability and security of Afghanistan.

Additional information:
Fazl Rabi provides financial and logistical support to the Haqqani Network, a Taliban-affiliated group of militants that operates from the Afghanistan/Pakistan border region. Rabi has traveled abroad to raise money for the Haqqani Network and has also helped to collect money for the military activities of the Taliban. In February 2009, Rabi traveled to Dubai, United Arab Emirates, to fundraise and conduct meetings on behalf of Sirajuddin Haqqani (TI.H.144.07), a senior Haqqani Network leader. Rabi has also traveled to the Gulf to raise funds for Jalaluddin Haqqani (TI.H.40.01), the patriarch of the Haqqani Network. Rabi is also a member of the Taliban's financial shura and has dispersed funds to Taliban commanders and officials.  

Rabi has been involved in sending suicide bombers to Afghanistan and has coordinated the Haqqani Network's relationship with other militant groups. While serving as the top Taliban official in Konar Province during the Taliban regime, Rabi was involved in shipping illegal narcotics out of Afghanistan. Following the fall of the Taliban in late 2001, Rabi fled to the Afghanistan/Pakistan border region.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Jalaluddin Haqqani (TI.H.40.01), listed on 31 January 2001
Sirajuddin Jallaloudine Haqqani (TI.H.144.07), listed on 13 September 2007
Nasiruddin Haqqani (TI.H.146.10), listed on 20 July 2010
Khalil Ahmed Haqqani (TI.H.150.11), listed on 9 February 2011
Badruddin Haqqani (TI.H.151.11), listed on 11 May 2011
Ahmed Jan Wazir (TI.W.159.12.), listed on 6 January 2012

TI.A.158.12. MOHAMMAD AMAN AKHUND 

Mohammad Aman Akhund was listed on 6 January 2012 pursuant to paragraph 3 of resolution 1988 (2011) as being associated with the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of” and “otherwise supporting acts or activities of those designated and other individuals, groups, undertakings and entities associated with the Taliban” in constituting a threat to the peace, stability and security of Afghanistan.

Additional information:
Mohammad Aman Akhund is a senior Taliban member who performs finance-related duties and has acted as Taliban leader Mullah Mohammed Omar's (TI.O.4.01) secretary. In early 2010, Aman Akhund and Gul Agha Ishakzai (TI.I.147.10), the head of the Taliban financial commission, collected over $300,000 in the Gulf on behalf of the Taliban military leadership. Aman Akhund has attended senior-level Taliban meetings, where he delivered oral and written messages from Mullah Omar.

Aman Akhund has also provided logistical support to Taliban operations and has been involved in collecting money from the drug trade in order to buy weapons for the Taliban. During the Taliban regime, Aman Akhund was a member of Mullah Omar's shura.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Mohammed Omar (TI.O.4.01), listed on 31 January 2001
Gul Agha Ishakzai (TI.I.147.10), listed on 20 July 2010

Jan Wazir (TI.W.159.12.), listed on 6 January 2012

TI.W.159.12. AHMED JAN WAZIR 

Ahmed Jan Wazir was listed on 6 January 2012 pursuant to paragraph 3 of resolution 1988 (2011) as being associated with the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of” and “otherwise supporting acts or activities of those designated and other individuals, groups, undertakings and entities associated with the Taliban” in constituting a threat to the peace, stability and security of Afghanistan.

Additional information:
Ahmed Jan Wazir is a key commander in the Haqqani Network, a Taliban-affiliated group of militants that operates from the Afghanistan/Pakistan border region. Ahmed Jan Wazir acts as a deputy, advisor and spokesperson for Sirajuddin Haqqani (TI.H.144.07), a senior leader of the Haqqani Network, and conducts meetings on behalf of the Haqqani Network. In late 2010, Ahmed Jan Wazir traveled with senior Haqqani Network members to the Gulf.

Ahmed Jan Wazir has represented the Haqqani Network at the Taliban's shura and has served as a conduit between the Haqqani Network and the Taliban in Ghazni Province, Afghanistan. In 2008, Taliban and Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01) militants appointed Ahmed Jan Wazir as a Taliban commander in Ghazni Province. He has provided other Taliban commanders in Ghazni Province with money and supplies, including weapons and communications equipment. During the Taliban regime, he was employed by the Ministry of Finance.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01), listed on 6 October 2001

Jalaluddin Haqqani (TI.H.40.01), listed on 31 January 2001
Sirajuddin Jallaloudine Haqqani (TI.H.144.07), listed on 13 September 2007
Nasiruddin Haqqani (TI.H.146.10), listed on 20 July 2010
Khalil Ahmed Haqqani (TI.H.150.11), listed on 9 February 2011
Badruddin Haqqani (TI.H.151.11), listed on 11 May 2011
Fazil Rabi (TI.R.157.12.), listed on 6 January 2011

TI.A.160.12. ABDUL SAMAD ACHEKZAI 

Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 2 March 2012

Abdul Samad Achekzai was listed on 2 March 2012 pursuant to paragraph 3 of resolution 1988 (2011) for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing, or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of ”, “supplying, selling or transferring arms and related materiel to”, or “recruiting for” “those designated and other individuals, groups, undertakings and entities associated with the Taliban in constituting a threat to the peace, stability and security of Afghanistan”.

Additional information:
Abdul Samad Achekzai is a senior Taliban member involved in manufacturing improvised explosive devices (IEDs) and running the group’s IED support network.  Samad, as at mid-2010, was responsible for IED component procurement and storage, detonator construction, and IED training in support of Taliban fighters in western and southern Afghanistan.

Samad has also been involved in attacks in Afghanistan on behalf of the Taliban.  As of early 2011, Samad was working with a Taliban member to assassinate an Afghan Border Police commander and had recruited a suicide bomber for the task.  At that time, Samad had deployed five suicide bombers to Afghanistan to conduct attacks on International Security Assistance Force and Afghan authorities.  In early 2010, Samad sent five Taliban suicide bombers to Kandahar to target Afghan authorities there.

Related listed individuals and entities

TI.G.161.12. BAKHT GUL 

Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 27 June 2012

Bakht Gul was listed on 27 June 2012 pursuant to paragraph 3 of resolution 1988 (2011) for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of”, “supplying, selling or transferring arms and related materiel to” and “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” those designated and other individuals, groups, undertakings and entities associated with the Taliban in constituting a threat to the peace, stability and security of Afghanistan.

Additional information:
Bakht Gul has been a key Haqqani Network communications official since at least 2009, when his predecessor was arrested in Afghanistan. As of 2011, Gul continued to report directly to Badruddin Haqqani (TI.H.151.11), a senior Haqqani Network leader, and has acted as an intermediary for those wishing to contact him. Gul's responsibilities include relaying reports from commanders in Afghanistan to senior Haqqani Network officials, Taliban media officials, and legitimate media outlets in Afghanistan.

Gul also works with Haqqani Network officials, including Badruddin Haqqani, to coordinate the movement of Haqqani Network insurgents, foreign fighters and weapons in the Afghanistan-Pakistan border region and eastern Afghanistan. As of 2010, Gul relayed operational orders from Badruddin Haqqani to fighters in Afghanistan. In late 2009, Gul distributed money to Haqqani Network sub-commanders traveling between Miram Shah and Afghanistan.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Badruddin Haqqani (TI.H.151.11), listed on 11 May 2011

TI.A.162.12. ABDUL SATAR ABDUL MANAN 

Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 29 June 2012

Abdul Satar Abdul Manan was listed on 29 June 2012 pursuant to paragraph 3 of resolution 1988 (2011) for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of” and “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” those designated and other individuals, groups, undertakings and entities associated with the Taliban in constituting a threat to the peace, stability and security of Afghanistan.

Additional information:
Abdul Satar Abdul Manan is a co-owner and operator of Haji Khairullah Haji Sattar Money Exchange (HKHS) (TE.H.1.12). Satar and Khairullah Barakzai Khudai Nazar (TI.K.163.12) have co-owned and jointly operated hawalas (informal money remittance services) known as HKHS throughout Afghanistan, Pakistan, and Dubai and managed an HKHS branch in the Afghanistan-Pakistan border region. As of late 2009, Satar and Khairullah had an equal partnership in HKHS. Satar founded HKHS and customers chose to use HKHS in part because of Satar’s and Khairullah’s well-known names.

Satar has donated thousands of dollars to the Taliban to support Taliban activities in Afghanistan and has distributed funds to the Taliban using his hawala. As of 2010, Satar provided financial assistance to the Taliban, and a Taliban commander and his associates may have transferred thousands of dollars through Satar in support of the insurgency. As of late 2009, Satar hosted senior Taliban members, provided tens of thousands of dollars to aid the Taliban’s fight against Coalition Forces in Marjah, Nad’Ali District, Helmand Province, Afghanistan, and helped to transport a Taliban member to Marjah. As of 2008, Satar and Khairullah collected money from donors and distributed the funds to the Taliban using their hawala.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Haji Khairullah Haji Sattar Money Exchange (TE.H.1.12), listed on 29 June 2012
Khairullah Barakzai Khudai Nazar (TI.K.163.12), listed on 29 June 2012 

TI.K.163.12. KHAIRULLAH BARAKZAI KHUDAI NAZAR 

Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 29 June 2012

Khairullah Barakzai Khudai Nazar was listed on 29 June 2012 pursuant to paragraph 3 of resolution 1988 (2011) for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of” and “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” those designated and other individuals, groups, undertakings and entities associated with the Taliban in constituting a threat to the peace, stability and security of Afghanistan.

Additional information:
Khairullah Barakzai Khudai Nazar is a co-owner and operator of Haji Khairullah Haji Sattar Money Exchange (HKHS) (TE.H.1.12). As of late 2009, Khairullah and Abdul Satar Abdul Manan (TI.A.162.12) had an equal partnership in HKHS. They jointly operated hawalas known as HKHS throughout Afghanistan, Pakistan, and Dubai and managed an HKHS branch in the Afghanistan-Pakistan border region. As of early 2010, Khairullah was the chief of the HKHS branch in Kabul. 

As of 2010, Khairullah was a hawaladar for Taliban senior leadership and provided financial assistance to the Taliban. Khairullah, along with his business partner Satar, provided thousands of dollars to the Taliban to support Taliban activities in Afghanistan. As of 2008, Khairullah and Satar collected money from donors and distributed the funds to the Taliban using their hawala.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Haji Khairullah Haji Sattar Money Exchange (TE.H.1.12), listed on 29 June 2012
Abdul Satar Abdul Manan (TI.A.162.12), listed on 29 June 2012 

Entities associated with the Taliban

TE.H.1.12. HAJI KHAIRULLAH HAJI SATTAR MONEY EXCHANGE 

Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 29 June 2012

Haji Khairullah Haji Sattar Money Exchange was listed on 29 June 2012 pursuant to paragraph 3 of resolution 1988 (2011) for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of” and “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” those designated and other individuals, groups, undertakings and entities associated with the Taliban in constituting a threat to the peace, stability and security of Afghanistan.

Additional information:
Haji Khairullah Haji Sattar Money Exchange (HKHS) is co-owned by Abdul Satar Abdul Manan (TI.A.162.12) and Khairullah Barakzai Khudai Nazar (TI.K.163.12). Satar and Khairullah have jointly operated money exchanges throughout Afghanistan, Pakistan, and Dubai, the United Arab Emirates. Taliban leaders have used HKHS to disseminate money to Taliban shadow governors and commanders and to receive hawala (informal money remittance) transfers for the Taliban.

As of 2011, the Taliban leadership transferred money to Taliban commanders in Afghanistan using HKHS. In late 2011, the HKHS branch in Lashkar Gah, Helmand Province, Afghanistan, was used to send money to the Taliban shadow governor for Helmand Province. In mid-2011, a Taliban commander used an HKHS branch in the Afghanistan-Pakistan border region to fund fighters and operations in Afghanistan. After the Taliban deposited a significant amount of cash monthly with this HKHS branch, Taliban commanders could access the funds from any HKHS branch. Taliban personnel used HKHS in 2010 to transfer money to hawalas in Afghanistan where operational commanders could access the funds. As of late 2009, the manager of the HKHS branch in Lashkar Gah oversaw the movement of Taliban funds through HKHS.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Abdul Satar Abdul Manan (TI.A.162.12), listed on 29 June 2012
Khairullah Barakzai Khudai Nazar (TI.K.163.12), listed on 29 June 2012 

TE.R.2.12. ROSHAN MONEY EXCHANGE 
Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 29 June 2012

Roshan Money Exchange was listed on 29 June 2012 pursuant to paragraph 3 of resolution 1988 (2011) for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of” and “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” those designated and other individuals, groups, undertakings and entities associated with the Taliban in constituting a threat to the peace, stability and security of Afghanistan.

Additional information:
Roshan Money Exchange (RMX) stores and transfers funds to support Taliban military operations and the Taliban’s role in the Afghan narcotics trade. RMX was one of the primary hawalas (informal money remittance services) used by Taliban officials in Helmand Province as of 2011.

In 2011, a senior Taliban member withdrew hundreds of thousands of dollars from an RMX branch in the Afghanistan-Pakistan border region to distribute to Taliban shadow provincial governors. To fund the Taliban’s spring offensive in 2011, the Taliban shadow governor of Helmand Province sent hundreds of thousands of dollars to RMX. Also in 2011, a Taliban member received tens of thousands of dollars from RMX to support military operations. An RMX branch in the Afghanistan-Pakistan border region also held tens of thousands of dollars to be collected by a Taliban commander. In 2010, on behalf of the Taliban shadow governor of Helmand Province, a Taliban member used RMX to send thousands of dollars to the Afghanistan-Pakistan border region.

The RMX branch in Lashkar Gah, Helmand Province, has been used by the Taliban to transfer funds for local operations. In 2011, a Taliban sub-commander transferred tens of thousands of dollars to a Taliban commander through the RMX branch in Lashkar Gah. The Taliban also sent funds to the RMX branch in Lashkar Gah for distribution to Taliban commanders in 2010. Also in 2010, a Taliban member used RMX to send tens of thousands of dollars to Helmand Province and Herat Province, Afghanistan, on behalf of the Taliban shadow governor of Helmand Province.

In 2009, a senior Taliban representative collected hundreds of thousands of dollars from an RMX branch in the Afghanistan-Pakistan border region to finance Taliban military operations in Afghanistan. The money sent to RMX originated in Iran. In 2008, a Taliban leader used RMX to transfer tens of thousands of dollars from Pakistan to Afghanistan.

The Taliban also uses RMX to facilitate its role in the Afghan narcotics trade. As of 2011, Taliban officials, including the shadow governor of Helmand Province, transferred hundreds of thousands of dollars from an RMX branch in the Afghanistan-Pakistan border region to hawalas in Afghanistan for the purchase of narcotics on behalf of Taliban officials. Also in 2011, a Taliban official directed Taliban commanders in Helmand Province to transfer opium proceeds through RMX. One Taliban district chief transferred thousands of dollars from Marjah, Helmand Province, Afghanistan, to an RMX branch in the Afghanistan-Pakistan border region.

Related listed individuals and entities:
